1957

G. T. Rummel et al v. K. R. Bailey, Jr. et al : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF CASE

Appellants were plaintiffs below. Respondents were
defendants below. The parties will be referred to herein
as they appeared in the trial court.

This is an equity suit in which plaintiffs seek to quiet their title to their Red Canyon Nos. 1 through 11 unpatented mining claims in San Juan County, and to secure an accounting for ore mined and sold by defendants. The principal defendants, Bailey, Hall and Nielson by Counter Claim assert title in themselves as to the conflict area by virtue of alleged prior location of their claims, known as Maybe Nos. 1 to 4, Red Fry Nos. 1 to 4 and Cedar Mesa No. 5 Mining Claims. The relative position and exact geographical conflict between the claims are shown by Exhibit P-97. The claims are located on Public Domain of the United States in what is known as White Canyon. The surface areas may fairly be described as rough. See U. S. Geological Survey Map, Exhibit P-4.

As will be hereinafter pointed out, plaintiffs concede that they have not established a discovery on other than their Red Canyon No. 6 and Red Canyon No. 9 claims. Plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 6 claim conflicts with portions of defendants' Maybe Nos. 2, 3, 4, and Red Fry No. 1 locations. Plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 9 claim conflicts with portions of defendants' Red Fry No. 1 and Cedar Mesa No. 5 locations (Exh. P-97). Plaintiffs contend that all of defendants' claims are wholly without validity.

It is felt that the following chronological outline will be helpful:

April 2, 1953: Date of Notices of location of defendants' Maybe Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, and Red Fry Nos. 1, 2, 3, and 4 claims. (Exhs. D-40, D-41)

July 24, 1953: Application for Oil and Gas Lease Serial Utah 010245 filed under the Mineral Leasing Act of February 25, 1920, as amended (41 Stat. 437; 30 USCA 181), by Henry Marks, covering all of land in controversy. (Exh. P-25, R. 975*, Exh. P-97)

August 7, 1953: Oil and Gas Lease Serial Utah 010245, dated as of September 1, 1953, issued to Henry Marks pursuant to said application. (Exhs. P-25, P-26)

August 18, 1953)

August 24, 1953): Dates of Notices of Location of plaintiffs' Red Canyon Nos. 1 through 9 claims and Red Canyon No. 10 claim respectively (said Notices having been posted about September 15, 1953, as hereinafter discussed). (Exh. P-36)

September, 1953: AEC drill hole No. 78 completed on plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 6 claim (portion in conflict with defendants' Maybe No. 3 claim) with discovery of ore in hole at depth in the Shinarump formation. This was shortly prior to posting of said Red Canyon Nos. 1-10 Notices. (R-182)

October 1 and 2, 1953: Respective dates of Amended Notices of Location of plaintiffs' Red Canyon Nos. 6 and 7 claims, posted on said dates. (Exh. P-36)

October 3, 1953: Date of Amended Notices of Location of plaintiffs' Red Canyon Nos. 9 and 10 claims and Notice of Location of plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 11 claim, posted on said date. (Exh. P-36)

*(R-975) refers to page 975 of the Record on Appeal. Similar form is used throughout this Brief for reference to the Record on Appeal.

October, 1953: AEC drill holes Nos. 95 and 98 completed on plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 6 claim (portions in conflict with defendants' Maybe Nos. 3 and 6 claims respectively) with discovery of ore in holes at depth in the Shin-arump formation. (R. 209, 182-3)

December 15, 1953: Date of Notice of Location of defendants' Cedar Mesa No. 5 claim. (Exh. D-40)

December 31, 1953: AEC drill hole No. 109 completed on plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 9 (portion in conflict with defendants' Red Fry No. 1) with discovery of ore in hole at depth in Shin-arump formation. (R. 209, 181)

April 28, 1954: Date of defendants' Notice of Lease Application as to Cedar Mesa No. 5, (Exh. D-40) posted on said date under provisions of U. S. Atomic Energy Commission Domestic Uranium Program Circular 7 (10 CFR 60.7) (hereinafter referred to as "Circular 7"). The record does not show that defendants filed any Lease Application with AEC pursuant to this Notice or that defendants filed with AEC any Withdrawal of Lease Application as required by Public Law 585, 83d Congress (68 Stat. 708; 30 USCA 501). The record does affirmatively show (Exh. D-40, p. 9 of Supplement, certified by abstractor May 1, 1956) that the abstractor was, in the county records, "unable to find any Withdrawal of Lease Application for Cedar Mesa No. 5," such recording being required under Public Law 585.

May 21, 1954: Date of plaintiffs' Notices of Lease Application as to Red Canyon Nos. 1 through 11 claims, posted on said date under provisions of said Circular 7. (Exh. P-36)

June 25, 1954: Date of AEC acknowledgment of filing with AEC plaintiffs' Lease Application No. O.G. 1021 embracing the Red Canyon Nos. 1 through 11 tracts (those tracts covered by said Notices of Lease Application). (Exh. P-37)

September 1, 1954):

September 25, 1954): Dates of plaintiffs' Amended Notices of Location as to plaintiffs' Red Canyon Nos. 1 through 9 claims, and 10 and 11 claims, respectively, posted on said date "for the purpose of correcting any errors in the original location, description or record, or validity * * *, and for the purpose of obtaining the benefits" of Public Law 585, said Amended Notices having been recorded September 29, 1954. (Exh. P-36)

September 30, 1954: Date of defendants' Amended Notice of Location as to defendants' Cedar Mesa No. 5, posted on said date "for the purpose of correcting any errors in the original location, description or record, or validity * * *, and for the purpose of obtaining the benefits" of said Public Law 585, said Amended Notice having been recorded October 21, 1954. (Exh. D-40)

October 7, 1954: Date of recording copy of withdrawal of plaintiffs' Lease Application No. O. G. 1021, above mentioned, the original of said withdrawal having been forwarded to AEC on September 29, 1954. (Exhs. P-36 and P-38)

Trial was had to the Court, the presentation of evidence lasting seven days. The record is lengthy, and it is the intention of counsel to refer to the same as briefly and as fairly as possible.

Plaintiffs' title was initiated in the following manner: In the first part of September, 1953, two agents and employees of plaintiffs, Richard F. Pasco and Irving W. Andrews, went into the area for the purpose of prospecting, having been drawn there by reports of drilling by The Atomic Energy Commission, (R-91) an agency of the United States government. This agency is commonly referred to, and is hereinafter referred to, as the AEC.

Richard F. Pasco, one of plaintiffs' agents who assisted in the location of plaintiffs' claims, is a University of Utah graduate in geology. Prior to his employment by plaintiffs he had been employed as an AEC geologist (R-85); he was not in the employment of plaintiffs at the time of the trial (R-87).

The plaintiffs located their claims in September, 1953, although their agent predated the certificates to August, 1953. Plaintiffs relied for discovery upon the following: The property, as noted above, was being drilled by the AEC and cores and cuttings from the drill holes were found, observed and examined. In the opinion of plaintiffs the ore bearing cores found and observed by them indicated that it would be worthwhile to locate claims, which they then did.

The evidence also developed that the Public Domain of the United States, upon which these claims were located, was made the subject of an oil and gas lease granted by the United States acting through the Bureau of Land Management of the Department of the Interior;

the application for and issuance of this oil and gas lease, a copy of which was introduced in evidence as Exhibit P-26, precluded the making of mining locations after July 24, 1953, unless the claims were validated pursuant to Public Law 585, 83d Congress, which became effective August 13, 1954. The law pertaining to the effect of the withdrawal of the area from mining location, and the necessity of the defendants having made a discovery and of having taken all other steps to perfect a valid and effective mining location on Public Domain of the United States prior to the date of July 24, 1953, will be reviewed and discussed at a later part of this brief.

Defendants claim their title was initiated by Milton C. Nielson. At the time Nielson did the acts relied upon he was acting as an agent and employee of the two other defendants, Hall and Bailey. His interest in the claims in litigation was acquired at a subsequent date. According to the testimony of the defendant Nielson, lines 22-30, p. 24, of his deposition, the defendant E. J. Hall prepared and wrote the location certificates for the defendants' claims in Monticello, handed them to the defendant Nielson, who was paid \$1,000.00 by Hall and Bailey to erect location monuments on an indefinite number of claims. (See his deposition p. 34) At the time Nielson performed these acts he was a full time employee of Walker Lybarger, which firm was performing work in the area for the AEC (Exhs. P-28 through P-35). During the period of time Nielson allegedly erected the location monuments, he certified, by signing the pay-

roll, that he worked full time and drew travel pay (R-552 lines 4-5), although at the time his deposition was taken he testified that he was not on the Walker Lybarger payroll at the time he erected the monuments. This witness made no attempt to discover ore on the defendants' claims either at the time he asserts he put up the location monuments or afterwards. (See lines 28-30, p. 8, lines 24-30, p. 9, line 1, p. 10, and lines 23-25, p. 11 of his deposition). The testimony of this witness was that his acts were confined to the erection of location monuments, that he not only made no attempt to discover ore on any of the claims, but that in fact he made no discovery on any of the claims. At lines 6-9, p. 15 of the deposition this witness, upon having the following question propounded to him, "Question: You didn't make any discovery of ore on any of the claims?" answered as follows: "Answer: No, sir." The witness affirmed this fact again at lines 19-25, p. 18 of his deposition.

The defendant Nielson acquired a one-third interest in these claims subsequent to the time he allegedly put up the location monuments. (Lines 25-26, p. 34 of his deposition)

The mining claims in question are located on an uplift, the geological formation on surface being known as the Mossback. At the trial the defendant Nielson testified that he had seen "sandstone lenses" on top of the Mossback. Substantial production of uranium has been encountered in the general area, all coming

out of the Shinarump and no production or even exploration has taken place in the Mossback.

The case was orally argued to the Court and Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law were entered. The trial Court did not permit the taking of a record at the time of oral argument and the making of the Court's oral decision from the bench. In making his decision from the bench the Court verbally announced that in his opinion what he referred to as the "Comstock Law" (General Mining Laws of 1872, 17 Stat. 91, 92; 30 USCA 23, 28) should be changed, and it was his decision that the defendants be awarded and given all of the mining claims lying underneath the "sandstone lenses," which had been observed by the defendants. There was no finding by the Court, either verbally from the bench or in his written findings, as to which of the claims, if any, were in fact situated beneath the "sandstone lens."

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN HOLDING PLAINTIFFS' CLAIMS INVALID BECAUSE OF FRAUD.

POINT II.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO RECOGNIZE AND APPLY ESTABLISHED LAW AS TO WHAT CONSTITUTES A VALID DISCOVERY ON A LODE MINING CLAIM.

POINT III.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN HOLDING THAT A VALID DISCOVERY HAD BEEN MADE ON DEFEND-

ANTS' MAYBE NOS. 1, 2, 3, 4 AND RED FRY NOS. 1, 2, 3, 4 OR ON ANY OF THEM PRIOR TO JULY 24, 1953, AND IN HOLDING THAT A DISCOVERY HAD BEEN MADE ON DEFENDANTS' CEDAR MESA NO. 5 AT ANY TIME PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 25, 1954.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Defendants' Notices of Location of their Maybe Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 and Red Fry Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 claims are dated April 2, 1953, and were recorded April 17, 1953, notwithstanding the fact that defendants do not claim to have monumented the corners of their claims until June, 1953. The weight of the evidence shows, plaintiffs submit, that no such monuments were erected in the area in conflict until after September, 1953. The filing with the Bureau of Land Management of an application for an oil and gas lease on July 24, 1953, and the issuance of an oil and gas lease by the United States pursuant to that application, precluded the making of any valid mining claim or the perfecting of any therefor made invalid mining claim on the lands covered by that oil and gas lease subsequent to the filing of said application and prior to the enactment of Public Law 585. *Filtrol Company v. Brittan and Echart*, 51 L.D. 649; *U. S. v. U. S. Borax Company*, 58 I. D. 426; *Monolith Portland Cement Company v. J. R. Gillbergh, et al.*, 61 I.D. 43. In order, therefore, for defendants' Maybe Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 and Red Fry Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 claims to be upheld as valid claims defendants must have made upon each of said claims a valid discovery of mineral or mineral bearing rock in place prior to July 24, 1953.

Public Law 585 permitted the location after that date of mining claims on public lands covered by a mineral lease application or a mineral lease. Said law also made express provision whereunder a mining location made between December 31, 1952, and February 10, 1954, could be validated by the filing of an amended notice of location within 120 days after enactment of that law. Defendants took no steps whatsoever to obtain the benefits of that law as to any of their Maybe Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 or Red Fry Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 claims by compliance with the conditions which it prescribed for the obtaining of such benefits. Defendants had not made on any one of their claims a valid discovery before the filing of said oil and gas lease application and their Maybe Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 and Red Fry Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 claims are, therefore, without validity. Had defendants complied with the provisions of that Act they could have claimed and obtained the benefits of the discoveries which, subsequent to said oil and gas application, were made by AEC but they did not do so.

Defendants' Cedar Mesa No. 5 claim was located December 15, 1953. It was subsequent to plaintiffs' location and amended location of the Red Canyon No. 9 claim with which it conflicts. The said Cedar Mesa No. 5 was, of course, invalid when located. That defendants recognized this is shown by the fact that they, on April 28, 1954, posted a Notice of Lease Application under AEC Circular 7, and by the fact that on September 30, 1954, they filed an Amended Notice of Location for the purpose of obtaining the benefits of Public Law 585, but the record does not show that

defendants ever filed with AEC a Lease Application in accordance with Circular 7 or that defendants ever filed with AEC a Withdrawal of Lease Application as required by Public Law 585. The record affirmatively shows that no Withdrawal of Lease Application was ever recorded as required by Public Law 585. There is no basis on which the Cedar Mesa No. 5 claim could have any priority antedating September 30, 1954, on which the above mentioned Amended Notice of Location was posted. That date was even subsequent to the filing by plaintiffs on September 25, 1954, of plaintiffs' second Amended Notice of Location as to its Red Canyon No. 9 claim.

The discoveries on plaintiffs' Red Canyon Nos. 6 and 9 claims were made in drilling conducted by AEC during September, October, November and December, 1953. Plaintiffs knew of said discoveries and examined the cores showing ore in the Shinarump formation at a depth of several hundred feet below the surface. Plaintiffs adopted, as they were entitled to, these discoveries. The original locations made by plaintiffs in September, 1953, and the amended locations made by plaintiffs in October, 1953, were invalid when made because they covered lands embraced within an oil and gas lease issued under the Mineral Leasing Act. Plaintiffs' said claims, other than their Red Canyon Nos. 6 and 9, were further invalid because of lack of discovery. On February 10, 1954, in recognition of the preclusion of mining locations on lands covered by an application or lease under the Mineral Leasing Act AEC promulgated its Circular 7 (10 C.F.R. § 60.7) prescribing a procedure

for the granting of uranium leases as to lands so closed to mining location. Under said Circular the first procedural step was the posting on the claim tracts of Notices of Lease Application. This plaintiffs did on May 21, 1954. As contemplated by Circular 7, such Notices were recorded May 27, 1954. Also as contemplated by Circular 7, plaintiffs filed with AEC their lease application which was assigned by AEC No. O.G. 1021.

Section 1 of Public Law 585 enacted by Congress August 13, 1954, granted to one who had located a mining claim after December 31, 1952, and before February 10, 1954, the right to validate said claim, with relation back to the date of otherwise valid location, within 120 days from the date of said Act by (1) posting and recording an amended notice of location and (2) withdrawing the lease application filed with AEC and (3) recording a notice of a filing of such withdrawal.

Plaintiffs complied with all of these steps.

Section 3 of Public Law 585 granted to one who had followed the procedures of Circular 7 a preference right to locate a mining claim within 120 days after the enactment by complying with similar specified conditions. Plaintiffs did everything required to obtain the benefits of section 3 of the Act as well as the benefits of section 1 of the Act.

If the hereinafter discussed pre-dating of plaintiffs' location certificates posted in September, 1953, had any effect upon the date of related priority of plaintiffs' Amended Notices of Location posted September 25, 1954,

pursuant to Public Law 585, such effects could not exceed this:

1. That plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 6 would relate back to the Amended Notice posted October 1, 1953;
2. That plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 7 would relate back to the Amended Notice posted October 2, 1953;
3. That plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 9 would relate back to the Amended Notice posted October 3, 1953; and
4. That plaintiffs' Amended Notices as to the Red Canyon Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 8 would relate back to the Notices of Lease Application posted May 21, 1954

Of course no such relation back could establish a priority in advance of the date of discovery on a particular claim and such relation is therefore of importance only in respect to plaintiffs' Red Canyon Nos. 6 and 9 claims on which discoveries were made.

Defendants' Cedar Mesa No. 5 claim, which conflicts with plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 9 claim, was not located until December 15, 1953, which was two and one-half months subsequent to the posting of the first Amended (and not pre-dated) Notice of Location of plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 9 claim. Defendants' Cedar Mesa No. 5 claim was invalid because (apart from its conflict with plaintiffs' prior Red Canyon No. 9 claim) it was located on ground covered by the above mentioned oil and gas lease. The record shows that defendants did not comply with Public Law 585 in respect to said

Cedar Mesa No. 5 claim and thereafter said claim could have no priority in advance of September 30, 1954, when the Amended Notice of Location was filed with respect thereto. That date was five days subsequent even to the second Amended Notice of Location of plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 9 claim posted September 25, 1954. Apart from these considerations, the record shows that there was no discovery on defendants' Cedar Mesa No. 5 claim even at the time of trial. So that there may be no confusion it should be pointed out that the discovery which was made on plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 9 claim was made on a portion of said claim which was not embraced within defendants' Cedar Mesa No. 5.

The trial court's finding (Finding 7, R. 58) that the pre-dating of plaintiffs' notices of location on their Red Canyon Nos. 1 through 10 claims was "for the purpose and intent of defrauding Defendants and other locators" is in direct conflict with the evidence. The trial court's conclusion that plaintiffs' Red Canyon Nos. 1 through 11 claims were invalid is wholly without support in the record and disregards the facts and the law in so far as said conclusion relates to plaintiffs' Red Canyon Nos. 6 and 9 claims. The trial court should have found for plaintiffs and against defendants as to plaintiffs' Red Canyon Nos. 6 and 9 claims. As to the remainder of plaintiffs' claims, the court's conclusion of invalidity was warranted on the basis of, and only on the basis of, lack of proof of discovery. As to each of defendants' claims the court should have found them to be invalid. There was no proof of discovery on plaintiffs' Maybe Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4 and Red Fry Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4

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