1957

G. T. Rummel et al v. K. R. Bailey, Jr. et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

POINT II

PLAINTIFFS FAILED TO PROVE THAT THEY HAD ANY VALID MINING CLAIMS IN THE RED CANYON NO. 6 and NO 9, BECAUSE THEY FAILED TO SHOW ANY DISCOVERY OF ORE BY THEMSELVES AND FAILED TO PROPERLY LOCATE THE CLAIM KNOWN AS RED CANYON NO. 9.

In this case, the Plaintiffs have abandoned all claims to any mining claims except Red Canyon No. 6 and Red Canyon No. 9. The Plaintiffs have also argued throughout their brief that the Defendants failed to establish any title to the claims in themselves and use this as a basis upon which they claim title should be given to them. The principal has been well established by this court that an individual seeking to quiet title to property in himself must show that he has good title and cannot rely upon any so-called weakness of the Defendants' title (*Babcock v. Dangerfield* 98 U. 10, 94 P. 2d 862; *Mercur Coalition Min. Co. v. Cannon* 112 U. 13, 184 P. 2d 341.) We, of course, do not admit any weakness in our title but rather strenuously assert that we have good title to the mining claims claimed by Defendants.

As heretofore pointed out the Plaintiffs *never* spent any time or money in exploration or development of their mining claims. They have relied exclusively upon the drilling by the A. E. C. and the actual mining by the Defendants. Mr. Pasco, a witness for the Plaintiffs, testified that he examined the cores from the holes drilled by the A. E. C. He said he found mineralization in some of

them. He referred to Plaintiffs' Exhibit P. 3 and said he could not tell which hole he examined the cores from. (R. 103) He testified that he examined the cuttings from the drilling but could not identify them with any particular claim. (R. 108) An examination of Exhibit P. 3 shows that most of the drilling was on Red Canyon No. 7 with only three holes shown on Red Canyon No. 6. In fact, Mr. Pasco said he could not say which of the two claims (Red Canyon No. 6 or Red Canyon No. 7) he had found the mineralization on (R. 109-111). It was Mr. Pasco who staked these claims for the Plaintiffs and he cannot say he had any discovery on Red Canyon No. 6 at the time of its location.

A close examination of Plaintiffs' claim Red Canyon No. 9 reveals a very interesting situation. Plaintiffs' Exhibit No. 5 contains the original Notices of Location for Red Canyon No. 9 together with the amended Notices of Location. The original Notice of Location on Red Canyon No. 9 shows the "south end center monument of Red Canyon No. 9 is corner No. 4 of Red Canyon No. 5." Defendants' Exhibit No. 87 is a map showing the location of Red Canyon No. 9 claim as described in the original Notice of Location. This places the Red Canyon No. 9 claim at almost a right angle with Red Canyon No. 6 and covers part of Red Canyon Nos. 6 and 7. This Notice of Location is dated the 18th day of August, 1953, although actually it was not prepared until sometime in September, 1953, and had been fraudulently antedated. On September 25, 1954, one year later, an amended Notice of Location was filed by the Plaintiffs herein on Red Canyon No.

9. In the amended Notice of Location as shown in Plaintiffs' Exhibit No. 5 they state:

“The SW end line of this claim is partly contiguous with the NE end line of the Red Canyon No. 6.”

They also filed a third amended Notice of Location, this one dated October 3, 1953, and shows the same wording as the SW end line of the claim being contiguous with the NE end line of Red Canyon No. 6. There is no testimony in the record, however, that they ever went out and restaked or relocated this claim. Thus if the original claim of Red Canyon Nos. 6 and 9 as shown on the original Notice of Location is correct, then the location is shown as found on Defendants' Exhibit No. 87. An examination of Defendants' Exhibit Nos. 88 and 89 shows the relative change in the moving of these claims. This is what is known as a “floating claim,” that is one that can be moved to suit the convenience of the locator. Such claims can have no basis in law. It is essential that a mining claim have a fixed location (36 *Am. Jur.* “Mines and Minerals” Sec. 89, page 341).

If we accept the final location of Plaintiffs' Red Canyon No. 9 claim as shown on Exhibit D. 88, it shows the discovery monument to be located in Defendants' Red Fry No. 1 claim. If the discovery is located outside of the mining claim or upon another valid mining claim then the location is void and of no effect.

“While it appears to be a recognized rule that the point of discovery must fall within the limits

of the claim as theretofore or thereafter laid out, and that a find made on another claim is a nullity and of no avail to the discovered . . .” 36 *Am Jur.* 336 “Mines and Minerals.” P. 339

POINT III

THE PLAINTIFFS, BY BACK-DATING THEIR CLAIMS, PERPETRATED A FRAUD AND THE CLAIMS ARE VOID.

Plaintiffs in their brief on this point state that the Plaintiffs were not seeking to “jump” or predate anyone’s claims because they did not believe any claims existed; that the predating injured no one; that fraud was not pleaded by Defendants as a defense and if the original notices were void because of fraud, amended notices were filed at a later date. Plaintiffs had knowledge that Defendants had mining claims in this area as evidenced by their checking and talking to the Defendants and asking about their mining claims before Plaintiffs staked their Red Canyon claims.

Plaintiffs’ witnesses, Andrews and Pasco, were staying at the A. E. C. Camp and told Ross Seaton, who was an A. E. C. geologist, that the Defendants, Hall and Bailey, claimed 12 claims in the area, but all they could find were 4 claims and they were going to stake everything and make Hall and Bailey prove where their claims were at, that they were not going to jump the claims but just pick up the fractions. See testimony of Ross Seaton. (R. 722)

Andrews told Darrell Spencer, who was the A. E. C. project geologist, that LaSalle was not interested in beat-

ing anyone out of anything, but he was going to overstate for fractions. (R. 712) This is another statement by Andrews that he knew Hall and Bailey had staked their claims in the area. Spencer also testified that it was common knowledge that Hall and Bailey were the owners of the claims when the A. E. C. started exploration which was prior to July 1, 1953. (R. 715)

It is significant that Defendants' claims are irregular in shape and size, the way that a prospector would lay out on the ground. If the claims had been "floated" in by Defendants as claimed by the Plaintiffs, they would be shown on the maps and surveys as 600 feet wide and 1500 feet long and forming an even geometric pattern such as the Plaintiffs' plat of the Red Canyon claims (Exh. P. 3)

Definite proof that the Plaintiffs had perpetrated a fraud in back-dating their claims and definite knowledge by the Defendants that such was the case was not obtained until the time of the trial and the testimony of Richard Pasco. Depositions had been previously taken of Mr. Rummel, a party Plaintiff, and Mr. Andrews and the question was asked them when the claims were located and both said the claims were located on August 18, 1953, the date that was on the notices of location. Defendants, therefore, had no prior knowledge of the fraud nor any opportunity to set it up as an affirmative defense in the pleadings. It was proper at the trial to present any evidence (and for the court to consider all facts and circumstances) that affected the validity of the claims since

there was a general denial of the validity of Plaintiffs' claims in the Defendants' answer. In their pleading Plaintiffs alleged that the claims were located on August 18, 1953, and the testimony of their own witnesses at the time of taking depositions reaffirmed this date of location. Defendants certainly could not anticipate that the same witnesses who had previously sworn under oath that the claims were located on August 18, 1953, would later come into court and again under oath state that they were actually located in September, 1953, and that they had been back-dated. There having been no objection to the proof, the court was required to consider the evidence and render judgment accordingly — notwithstanding the lack or absence of pleadings specifically raising the issue. (URCP 54 (c) (1); *Morris v. Russell*, 120 Utah 545, 236 P. 2d 451)

Plaintiffs in attempting to answer the question of fraud perpetrated by back-dating the notices of location state that no one was injured and infer that the fraud was not perpetrated against anyone and there was no intention to defraud. They justify the Plaintiffs' conduct by the statement that they were apprehensive of what the Defendants might do with their claims. The back-dating of the claims was intentional by the Plaintiffs and for the purpose of gaining an advantage against anyone that had located in the area and against the government itself.

It is significant that the Plaintiffs selected August 18, 1953, to place on their notices of location in back-dating them because it was on this date that a very valuable

drill hole was bottomed which gave further evidence of the discovery and enlarged upon the ore body in the cub channel. Andrews and Pasco had this information from the A. E. C. drilling crew and it was first recorded by the A. E. C. that this valuable drill hole bottomed on August 18, 1953, was on the Maybe group of claims. It later developed after Plaintiffs had used this date that this valuable drill hole was drilled on the east side of the Windgate on the Gizmo claims but still on this cub channel. By selecting this date Plaintiffs were attempting fraudulently to use a good ore discovery made by the A. E. C.

Another advantage that the Plaintiffs attempted to gain by using this date was the predating of the issuance of the oil and gas lease which was dated September 1, 1953.

Under public law 585 (30 USCA 521 et seq.) the prior filing of a notice of location on an area previously leased for oil and gas gives a preference right to establish a first and prior mining claim when the amended notice of location is filed under this act. The back-dating accordingly gave them this added preference in time when they filed their amended notices of location under the act on September 25, 1954, and recorded September 29, 1954. These amended notices of location on Red Canyon Nos. 6 and 9 recite that they are the same lodes originally located on August 18, 1953. (Exh. P. 36) Here again the Plaintiffs attempt to take advantage of their fraudulent act of back-dating the original notices of location and rely on the original notices.

Others that were injured and defrauded by Plaintiffs predating the notices of location, besides the Defendants, were other locators in the area who had located claims in the area contiguous to the Maybe group of mines. Donald V. Blake located the Gizmo claims and Curtis Jones located the Windgate claims on August 25, 1953, which claims cover part of the area attempted to be located by Plaintiffs. These mining claims located by Blake and Jones are shown by Exhibits D 91 and D 92 and shown on the map, Exhibit D 89. The testimony of Donald V. Blake (who is the same person as Chap Blake) as to these locations and that he observed the locations of the Maybe group and Red Fry group of claims by the Defendants before July 1, 1953, is set forth in the record at pages R. 755 to 757. The Windgate and Gizmo claims located by Blake and Jones and their relation to the area in conflict is set forth in Exhibit D 89. It is significant that Blake saw the Defendants' locations before July 1, 1953, and he was in there for the specific purpose of locating some claims for himself, and that upon seeing Defendants' locations he then went on to the east and located in an area contiguous on the east.

The Utah case of *Mouldoon, et al v. Brown, et al*, 21 Utah 121, 59 Pac. 720, was cited by Plaintiffs in their brief as the leading case on the subject of a mining claim being void where it is fraudulently predated. The court states:

“The dating back of location notice, for the purpose of defeating other claimants to the land covered by the notice, was a fraud upon the parties

sought to be defeated, and it may also be fraud upon the government.”

This Utah case is quoted as an authority in a number of texts and cited in 58 C. J. S., Page 97, Sec. 45, Note 52, which states:

“If the locator fraudulently outdates his notice to defeat another location, it is void.”

The back-dating by the Plaintiffs was an intentional act designed to give them an advantage over the Defendants in their location of the Maybe and Red Fry group of claims and an advantage over any other locators, such as, Chap Blake, and an advantage against the government, which was therefore with the intent to defraud these respective parties.

Plaintiffs state that even if the first locations were fraudulent amended notices were filed and are unassailable insofar as their regularity is concerned. Plaintiffs in their pleading rely on the original notices of location which are dated August 18, 1953, and recorded September 17, 1953. They do not rely upon claims and rights initiated the latter part of September, 1953, when the amended notices were filed. Plaintiffs at the trial did not abandon the original notices of location and rely solely upon the amended notices but asserted the validity of the original notices at all times.

The Trial Court found and held that the original Red Canyon notices of location were fraudulent and therefore void. It is an accepted rule of law that a void thing cannot be amended.

This rule was announced early in the mining law, *McEvoy vs. Hyman*, 25 Fed. 596.

“A void thing is null, and not subject to amendment. A thing in esse is a condition precedent to the exercise of the power of amendment, for a living graft cannot be put on a dead stock.”

Other cases holding that a void notice of location cannot be amended are: *Frisholm, et al vs. Fitzgerald*, 25 Colo. 290, 53 Pac. 1109; *Sullivan, et al vs. Sharp, et al*, 33 Colo. 346, 80 Pac. R. 1054. (See also: *American Mining Law* Volume 1, 19 and 3 — Sec. 693, Note 24; and Sec. 699, Note 41.)

Amended notices of location are designed and made for the purpose of correcting errors and irregularities in their first location notice which is otherwise valid, but there must be a prior instrument which has some validity on which the amendment can operate and refer to. Mining claims which are void, as held by the court in this case, contain nothing that can be amended. The area attempted to be located under a void mining claim is the same as if no location had been made, and insofar as a void location affects the area, it continues to be open for location.

To permit the Plaintiffs to now stand on their amended notices of location after they have fraudulently predated their original notices, places a premium on such falsification and gives a locator that will predate his claims a decided advantage. It is true that a locator in a new area who places the correct date that the claims

were located on the notice of location runs the chance of some unscrupulous person coming into the area and noticing his notices of location and then predating notices and locating the same area, and that the unscrupulous locator will then claim that his notices of location were posted on the ground first. This possibility of being imposed upon and defrauded by an unscrupulous prospector is certainly no justification for the prospector that was there first following a general practice of predating his claims in order to defeat the claims of a later party, who may also fraudulently predate them. The possibility that anyone may commit a fraud does not justify another one in committing it. Such would place a premium on dishonesty. If the Plaintiffs' contention that the original notices of location are not fraudulent because no one was defrauded, and that if they were fraudulent the amended notices of location are good and valid, the prospectors should then change their method of prospecting and in each instance predate the claims about 28 days and rush to the recorder's office so that they are recorded within 30 days from the date they bear. Shortly after the predated notices are located a prospector should then file an amended notice so that if he gets caught in the fraudulent act of predating the original notices, he can then come in and stand on the amended notices. This is exactly what the Plaintiffs are attempting to do in the instant case by the policy and rule of law they are asking the court to announce in this appeal.

A locator who intentionally back-dates his claim should not be allowed any advantage, and the notices of

location attempted to be located by this fraudulent act should be held to be void and not subject to amendment.

Plaintiffs in their Brief state they have abandoned all of their claims except Red Canyon Nos. 6 and 9. The other Red Canyon claims Nos. 1 to 5, 7, 8, and 10 were located in the same area and under the same circumstances as Nos. 6 and 9 they now claim. Nos. 6 and 9 are subject to the same objections and have no more validity than the others abandoned by Plaintiffs.

SUMMARY

The decision of the Trial Court should be affirmed in finding that the Defendants had good valid mining claims and Plaintiffs did not have good and valid mining claims.

Respectfully submitted

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